1986

Gay M. Beckstead v. Robert W. Marsing, Gay  
Marsing. Dpma;d Rau Demmos. Francis H.  
Dennis, Jeffery W. McBride, and Barbara H.  
McBride : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF ISSUES

1. WHETHER A VENDEE IN THE PURCHASE OF REAL PROPERTY PLACED IN ESCROW HAS UNTIL DELIVERY OF DEED FROM DEPOSITORY AFTER THE FINAL PAYMENT IS MADE TO REQUIRE REFORMATION OF CONTRACT.

2. WHETHER A SUBSEQUENT PURCHASER OF REAL PROPERTY CHARGED WITH INFORMATION, KNOWLEDGE AND CLAIMS OF A PURPORTED PRIOR PURCHASER OF REAL PROPERTY BY REASON OF RECORDING OF A NOTICE OF CONTRACT INTEREST, AND AFTER PERSONAL KNOWLEDGE OF CLAIM TO REAL PROPERTY, CAN BE PLACED IN TITLE IN A SUIT TO VOID THE CONVEYANCE TO HIM BECAUSE OF THE RUNNING OF THE STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS (THREE YEARS FROM DISCOVERY OF MISTAKE) PRIOR TO AN ACTION BEING BROUGHT TO CORRECT AN ERROR IN THE CONTRACT AND DEED.

3. WHETHER STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS FOR FRAUD AND MISTAKE IS TOLLED WHERE PARTY AGAINST WHOM THE STATUTE RUNS IS IN POSSESSION OR CONSTRUCTIVE POSSESSION OF THE PREMISES.

4. WHETHER THE STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS RUNS AGAINST A PARTY IN AN ACTION WHO FILES AN ACTION AFTER DISCOVERY OF A MISTAKE BUT DOES NOT ALLEGE FRAUD FOR A MISTAKE.

STATUTES

1. Section 57-3-2, Utah Code Annotated, 1953, as amended:

Record imparts notice. Every conveyance, or instrument in writing affecting real estate, executed, acknowledged or proved, and certified, in the manner prescribed by this title, and every patent to lands within this state duly executed and verified according to law, and every judgment, order or decree of any court of record in this state, or a copy thereof, required by law to be recorded in the office of the county recorder, and every financing statement which complies with the provisions of section 70A-9-402 shall, from the time of filing the same with the recorder for record, impart notice to all persons of the contents thereof; and subsequent purchasers, mortgagees and lien holders shall be deemed to purchase and take with notice.

2. Section 78-12-26(3), Utah Code Annotated, 1953, as amended:

Within three years: An action for relief on the ground of fraud or mistake; but the cause of action in such case shall not be deemed to have accrued until the discovery by the aggrieved party of the facts constituting the fraud or mistake.

STATEMENT OF CASE

This is an action for breach of contract, for reformation of contract and deed, and for voidance of deed to subsequent purchaser. Defendants filed a Motion for Summary Judgment, moving for dismissal of Plaintiffs' Complaint on the grounds that Plaintiffs had not filed their action within three years of discovering that a mistake in the description in the contract had been made. Plaintiffs claim that Defendants had actual, as well as constructional, notice of Plaintiffs' claim, that Plaintiffs had partial possession, and that Plaintiffs had until final payment was made on the contract before the Statute of Limitations would start to run, and therefore that the three-year Statute of Limitations for mistake does not apply. The Court found that Plaintiffs "learned of the incorrect description in the deed and in the contract...no later than May 1979" and held that 78-12-26(3) applied and that Plaintiffs' action was barred.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

In the summer of 1977, Defendant GAY MARSING and Plaintiff GAY BECKSTEAD were real estate agents for Opheikens

& Co. Realty (R-38, 142). Defendant MARSING, in the summer of 1977, put her home and thirteen (13) acres on the market for sale. She was in the process of going through a divorce and was anxious to sell her property to resolve her divorce settlement requirements (R-39, 142). After a period of time of having no prospects to sell the home and the acreage, she decided to sell the house separate from the acreage (R-39, 143).

Plaintiff BECKSTEAD was interested in purchasing the acreage behind Defendant MARSING's house and was shown the property by MARSING in August of 1977 (R-40, 41, 143). At the time Defendant MARSING showed the property to Plaintiff BECKSTEAD, a Weber County plat of the property (R-136) was referred to in Defendant MARSING's representation of the amount of property being offered to Plaintiff BECKSTEAD (R-41). The acreage shown on the Weber County plat owned by Defendant MARSING indicated Defendant MARSING was the owner of 1.89 acres, 8.66 acres, and 1.55 acres (R-136, 143). The 1.89 acres was the land on which the house was located; the 8.66 acres was the land behind the house; the 1.55 acres was for access and also additional land behind the house (R-143). The land offered to the Plaintiff BECKSTEAD by the Defendant MARSING was approximately ten (10) acres (8.66 plus 1.55) (R-60, 143).



On August 11, 1977, an Earnest Money Receipt and Offer to Purchase was executed by the parties wherein Defendant MARSING agreed to sell to Plaintiff BECKSTEAD 10 acres plus three shares of irrigation water for the sum of \$25,000.00 (\$2,500.00 per acre) (R-43, 55, 143).

The sale was to be closed on September 16, but, at the request of Defendant MARSING, the sale was not closed until October 5, 1977 (R-144).

Shortly after the MARSING-BECKSTEAD contract had been entered into, Defendant MARSING stated that she had shown the home to Defendant DONALD DENNIS; that he was quite interested, but desired to have more ground with the house, at which time Plaintiff BECKSTEAD said to the Defendant MARSING that she (BECKSTEAD) was glad that "we got our ten acres first" (R-144).

Defendants DONALD and FRANCIS DENNIS bought the home and 1.89 acres in the latter part of 1977 (R-60, 145).

Defendant MARSING, by agreement, was to survey the division line between the two properties, and in the spring of 1978 Plaintiff BECKSTEAD went to the property to put up a fence in accordance with the survey stakes, but could not find them and was informed by Defendant DONALD DENNIS that he knew where the line was and where the markers had been that were no longer there (R-144). Having no reason to doubt him, the fence was put up where DONALD DENNIS indicated

the markers had been (R-144). The fence is probably not on any deeded lines (R-67).

In the fall of 1978, the Plaintiff BECKSTEAD offered the property for sale to Plaintiffs BERTRAND and FONTAINE. The Weber County plat was again referred to, showing the 8.66 acres and the 1.55 acres (R-144). A contract for the ten acres was entered into by the parties on February 16, 1979, for a price of \$35,000.00 (\$3,500.00) per acre (R-144).

In February 1979, when Plaintiff BECKSTEAD sold the ten acres to Plaintiffs BERTRAND and FONTAINE, a Notice of Contract Interest was prepared, correctly describing the 8.66 acres and 1.55 acres, and recorded in the Weber County Recorder's Office in February 1979 (R-139, 145, 146).

In March or April of 1979, Defendant DONALD DENNIS contacted Plaintiff BECKSTEAD, indicating that he had received the tax notice showing the legal description of 1.89 acres (R-145), claiming he had bought three acres. Plaintiff BECKSTEAD told Defendant DENNIS at that time that she (BECKSTEAD) had bought ten acres and that he (DENNIS) could not have purchased three acres, because there were only two acres left to sell (R-145). Plaintiff BECKSTEAD then contacted Defendant MARSING concerning this call (April

or May 1979), and was told there appeared to be a problem, but she (Defendant MARSING) had taken care of it (R-145).

About April 1979, Plaintiffs BECKSTEAD and BERTRAND picked up copies of the legal descriptions at the Weber County Recorder's office. The descriptions and the plats showed the 8.66 acres and 1.55 acres in MARSING's name (these were subject to the contract between BECKSTEAD and MARSING), and the 1.89 acres in the name of DENNIS (R-145).

In May 1979, Plaintiff BECKSTEAD received a call from DONALD DENNIS, informing her that he had received a Warranty Deed for an additional acre (R-145). Plaintiff BECKSTEAD again reviewed the plats and descriptions at the Weber County Recorder's office and found that there were now 2.91 acres in the name of Defendant DONALD DENNIS (R-145). The deed referred to by DONALD DENNIS had been purportedly signed on December 5, 1977, but not notarized until January 26, 1979, and was not recorded until May 1979 (R-139).

The Earnest Money Receipt and Offer to Purchase between Plaintiff BECKSTEAD and Defendant MARSING called for ten acres (R-137, 138). The contract, escrow, and deed placed in escrow between MARSING and BECKSTEAD was described to cover only nine of the ten acres (R-146). The contract and escrow between BECKSTEAD and MARSING was not paid in full by BECKSTEAD until 1983, after the lawsuit had been filed by Plaintiffs against Defendants (T-146). Defendant

GAY MARSING's Warranty Deed to Plaintiff GAY BECKSTEAD was not delivered to Plaintiff GAY BECKSTEAD until final payment had been made in October 1983 (R-146).

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS

It is Plaintiffs' position that they had until the time of the final payment of the contract and receipt of deed from depository before the Statute of Limitations would commence to run on any action they might bring against the Defendants for reformation, mistake, or voidance of documents.

It is Plaintiffs' further position that Defendants cannot complain against Plaintiffs' claimed interest in the acre of property in question because the Defendants were on notice by reason of a recording of Notice of Contract Interest and actual notice given Defendants by Plaintiffs of Plaintiffs' claimed interest prior to any stated or recorded claim of Defendants in the property in question.

While the fence dividing the possession between Plaintiffs and Defendants was not placed on a deed line, Defendants were aware of Plaintiffs' claim to possession of the property in question, and because of Defendants' knowledge of such claim, Plaintiffs should not be barred by the Statute of Limitations that requires that an action for mistake or

fraud be filed within three years of the time of finding out that a mistake has been made.

While an action for fraud, and mistake may be appropriate in the instant case, other actions, such as breach of contract, voidance of documents, reformation of descriptions, or quiet title action should not be precluded by the three-year Statute of Limitations for mistake.

#### ARGUMENT

##### POINT ONE

WHETHER A VENDEE IN THE PURCHASE OF REAL PROPERTY PLACED IN ESCROW HAS UNTIL DELIVERY OF DEED FROM DEPOSITORY AFTER THE FINAL PAYMENT IS MADE TO REQUIRE REFORMATION OF CONTRACT.

1. The vendor in the sale of real property placed in escrow pending final payment has until the final payment is made to perform per the terms of the real estate contract. The Utah Supreme Court follows this reasoning in Hurwitz v. David B. Richards and Company, 436 P.2d 794 (20 U.2d 232), quoting Section 451, Contracts, in 17 Amjur 2d:

"It is a well-established general rule that where a party repudiates a contract before time for performance arrives, the repudiation may be withdrawn unless the other party, before the withdrawal, manifests an election to rescind the contract or materially change his position in reliance on the repudiation. The locus poenitentiae is kept open until the injured party elects to treat the contract as abandoned by the other party and brings action for nonperformance."

In the Hurwitz v. David B. Richards and Company case, the Utah Supreme Court further quotes Diamos v. Hirsch, 91 A. 304, 372 P.2d 76:

"We have recognized that an action may be maintained for breach of contract based upon the anticipatory repudiation by one of the parties in the contract. It is well-established that in order to constitute an anticipatory breach of contract there must be a positive and unequivocal manifestation on the part of the party allegedly repudiating that he will not render the promised performance when the time fixed for it in the contract arrives. And as succinctly pointed out in Section 319 of the Restatement of Law of Contracts, the effect of repudiation is nullified: '(a) where statements constituting such a repudiation are withdrawn by information to the effect given by the repudiator to the injured party before he has brought an action on the breach or has otherwise materially changed his position in reliance on them; \*\*.'"

Again in the Hurwitz v. David B. Richards case the Utah Supreme Court stated that the party having the right to declare an anticipatory breach had three options available:

"1. Treat the entire contract as broken and sue for damages. 2. Treat the contract as still binding and wait until the time arrives for its performance and at such time bring an action on the contract [underlining added]. 3. Rescind the contract and sue for the money paid or for the value of services or property furnished."

This line of reasoning is also propounded in Corporation Nine v. Taylor, 513 P.2d 417 (30 U.2d 47), where the Utah Supreme Court stated:

"Corporation Nine also essays that it is entitled to damages against the Taylors because they had committed a breach of contract by entering into an

agreement with a Mr. Jerry Young to sell part of the land to him. Two points support the trial court in rejecting this claim. First, the law does not require the vendor to have clear and marketable title at all times during the performance of its contract, and is not ordinarily so obliged until the time comes for him to perform [underlining added]. The buyers should not be heard to complain unless it appears that it will be impossible or at least highly unlikely that seller will be able to perform his contract when he is called upon to do so, which we do not see as the situation here. Complimenting this is the fact that the buyer himself should not be heard to complain when it is his own default which is preventing fulfillment of the contract."

This doctrine is also found in Doxey-Layton Company v. Stark, 548 P.2d 902. The Utah Supreme Court, in commenting on the Statute of Limitations where a contract and deed are held in escrow, stated:

"This Statute allows an action to be brought on the ground of fraud or mistake within three years, but provided the cause shall not be deemed to have accrued until the aggrieved party discovers the facts constituting fraud or mistake. Plaintiffs claim the statute began to run as of the date of execution; viz., August 13, 1963, rather than the date of delivery - termination of the escrow.

"A deed in escrow, under the conditional sales contract, is effective as a conveyance after performance of the contract obligations, and upon delivery by the depository. Except for unusual circumstances (those which would create a shocking injustice), which the Court does not find present here, the date of delivery of the deed does not relay back to the date of execution of the deed [underling added], or the commencement of the escrow period. Thus, in this matter, the limitation period to reform the deed did not commence to run until May 15, 1970."

In the instant case, Plaintiff BECKSTEAD did not receive her deed from the escrow depository until 1983. Laches and the Statute of Limitations should not commence to run until receipt of her deed.

The Utah Supreme Court, in the Corporation Nine v. Taylor case cited above, gave the vendor until time to perform to furnish clear and marketable title. This same rule should apply to a vendee seeking to obtain that which is purchased. To rule otherwise would require the vendee to bring his action before performance is required, but not permit the suit because the vendor had until time of performance to deliver. The Utah Supreme Court, in the Corporation Nine v. Taylor case, took this position, unless it would appear to be impossible for seller to be able to perform. In the instant case, the subsequent purchasers (Defendants herein) were on notice by recording of Notice of Contract Interest and by actual notice prior to their recording any claim to the acre in question. With this knowledge by Defendants, they are not bona fide purchasers without notice and they should not be heard to say that it is impossible for title to be delivered to Plaintiffs.



POINT TWO

WHETHER A SUBSEQUENT PURCHASER OF REAL PROPERTY CHARTED WITH INFORMATION, KNOWLEDGE AND CLAIMS OF A PURPORTED PRIOR PURCHASER OF REAL PROPERTY BY REASON OF RECORDING OF A NOTICE OF CONTRACT INTEREST, AND AFTER PERSONAL KNOWLEDGE OF CLAIM TO REAL PROPERTY, CAN BE PLACED IN TITLE BECAUSE OF THE RUNNING OF THE STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS (THREE YEARS FROM MISTAKE) PRIOR TO AN ACTION BEING BROUGHT TO CORRECT AN ERROR IN THE CONTRACT AND DEED.

2. A purchaser of real property is charged with knowledge of information, claims, etc., recorded prior to recording his claim or interest in the real property. Defendant DONALD DENNIS did not receive or record his deed (May 1979) until after Notice of Contract Interest in sale of the same property between Plaintiff BECKSTEAD and Plaintiffs BERTRAND and FONTAINE had been recorded (February 1979), and after being told by Plaintiff BECKSTEAD that he could not have three acres because she (BECKSTEAD) had bought ten acres and there were only two acres left. Defendant DENNIS acquired his deed after personal notice and recording of the BECKSTEAD-BERTRAND interest, and he becomes an interloper to title subject to a quiet title action by Plaintiffs. UCA 57-3-2, 1953, as amended, states that recording imparts notice of every instrument in writing recorded from the time of filing.

The Statute of Limitations does not apply in an action to seek reformation where violation of prior sale was known to subsequent purchaser. The Utah Court, in Bench v. Pace,

538 P.2d 180, held that Statute of Limitations did not apply where a mistake was made in not reciting the reservation of oil and gas rights in a contract, known at the time of execution of the contract, which facts were well known to the contract purchasers of the property. The Court held:

"The Defendant's ownership of the mineral estate was not threatened until these proceedings were initiated, and in view of these circumstances we are of the opinion that the Statute of Limitations and doctrine of laches do not apply."

POINT THREE

WHETHER STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS FOR FRAUD AND MISTAKE IS TOLLED WHERE PARTY AGAINST WHOM THE STATUTE RUNS IS IN POSSESSION OR CONSTRUCTIVE POSSESSION OF THE PREMISES.

3. Statute of Limitations for fraud and mistake do not apply where the one against whom the Statute is to be asserted is in possession. The Utah Court in Jensen v. Manila Corporation of the Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-day Saints, 565 P.2d 63, found the claim of laches adequately answered in Tapler v. Fray, 184 Pa. Supr. 239, 132 A.2d 890 (1957). The Utah Court quoted the Tapler Court:

"Plaintiffs were in undisputed possession of the premises, and there was no occasion to bring this action earlier. Laches will not be imputed to one constantly in complete possession of premises, the title to which is in controversy."

The record in this case indicates that possession of the acre in question was partly in Plaintiffs and party in Defendants; the fence placed on the property was not placed on a deed line.

POINT FOUR

WHETHER THE STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS RUNS AGAINST A PARTY IN AN ACTION WHO FILES AN ACTION AFTER DISCOVERY OF A MISTAKE BUT DOES NOT ALLEGE FRAUD FOR A MISTAKE.

4. For the Statute of Limitations for fraud and mistake to apply, there must be an allegation of fraud or mistake. In Haws v. Jensen, 209 P.2d 229, the Utah Supreme Court said:

"The Defendant's final contention is that Plaintiff's cause of action, if any, is barred by 104-2-24(3), UCA (1943), which provides that an action for relief on the ground of fraud or mistake must be commenced within three years. This contention, too, must fail. There is no allegation of fraud or mistake in the Complaint. The Plaintiff did not rely upon either ground for recovery in this action. It is not intended that Amber fraudulently procured the conveyance of the property to her upon the promise to hold it for the use and benefit of Plaintiffs. Clearly, the statute relied upon by Defendant is not here applicable."

In Wahlen v. Scottsdale Plumbing Co., Inc., 55-57 P. 2d 190, the Arizona Court of Appeals (1976), stated in a question of the applicability of Statute of Limitations for fraud and mistake:

"Assuming ARS Section 12-543 is applicable, this statute provides in part that: 'There shall be commenced to prosecute within three years after the cause of action accrues, not afterwards, the following actions: "For relief on the ground of fraud or mistake..."'

"We first note that the statute on its face is applicable to the commencement of 'actions for relief on the ground of fraud' and forbids such 'action' after the passage of three years. However, if the fraudulent character of the deed arises in some other way than in an 'action' there is nothing on the face of the statute that prevents it from being assailed for fraud."

The Arizona Court further commented:

"See also Davidson v. Salt Lake City, 95 U. 347, 81 P.2d 374 (1938). Puccetti quoted favorably from Stewart v. Hansen, 32 Cal. 260 (Cal. 1867) which elaborated on the underlying theory as follows:


'It is true that the clouds in question have their inception in fraud; but fraud is not a universal characteristic of the cause of action and cannot, therefore, be adopted as a test of the true nature of the action when its position in the various categories presented by the Statute of Limitation comes to be considered.... The gravamen of the action is that the conveyances of which complaint is made, are clouds upon the title, and for that reason, and that only, their cancellation is asked. The right of Plaintiff to his relief does not depend altogether upon the question of whether they are tainted with fraud, but upon the fact that they are clouds. Conveyances not tainted with fraud may cloud the true title. Hence, fraud is a false quantity when it would come to assign an action of this character to its proper class under the Statute of Limitation. If fraud exists, it does so merely as a feature of the case and not as a test of the true nature of the cause of action within meaning of the Statute.' 32 Cal. at 263."

Plaintiffs in this action ask that their deed be reformed to correct an error in description and that the deed to subsequent purchasers be voided.

CONCLUSION

Plaintiffs in this action ask that the decision of the lower Court granting Summary Judgment and dismissing Plaintiffs' action for failure to file within three years after discovery of a mistake be reversed and that Plaintiffs be permitted to take their action to trial.