1986

Gay M. Beckstead, Jeanne Bertrand, Jeanne  
Fontaine v. Robert W. Marsing, Gay Marsing,  
Donald Ray Dennis, Francis H. Dennis, Jeffery W.  
McBride, Barbara H. McBride : Brief of  
Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

#### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Appellants allege that they entered into an agreement with Respondents Marsings for the purchase of ten acres of real property; that Respondents Marsings "represented" that there were ten acres (R 2, 3), but when the agreement was put in writing and a deed prepared that "the agreement was changed so as to include only nine acres." (R 2); that there was "an error in description" (R 3), and that it was the "actual intention" (R 3), of the parties that there should be conveyed ten acres instead of the nine acres provided for in the contract and deed (R 3). Appellants allege in paragraph five (5) of their complaint that the fraud or mistake was discovered by the plaintiffs in the spring of 1979. (R 3). They also placed the time of learning of the fraud or mistake in March or

April of 1979 (R 144, 145) . In May of 1979 Appellants further learned of the fraud or mistake when a warranty deed , dated December 5, 1977, to the disputed acre was recorded on May 8, 1979, in the Weber County Recorders office by Defendants Dennis , naming Dennis' as grantees (R 139) . Appellants were also informed by Dennis personally in May of 1979 that he had received a deed to the disputed acre (R 145) . Respondents McBride's Motion for Summary Judgment was based upon the facts that Appellants' action was not brought within three years after the discovery of the alleged fraud or mistake and , therefore, barred by Section 78-12-26 (3) , Utah Code Annotated, 1953, as amended , which is as follows:

"78-12-26 WITHIN THREE YEARS -

Within three years: \* \* \* \* (3) An action for relief on the grounds of fraud or mistake; but the cause of action in such case shall not be deemed to have accrued until the discovery by the aggrieved party of the facts constituting the fraud or mistake."

#### ARGUMENT

#### POINT ONE

WHETHER A VENDEE IN THE PURCHASE OF REAL PROPERTY PLACED IN ESCROW HAS UNTIL DELIVERY OF DEED FROM DEPOSITORY AFTER THE FINAL PAYMENT IS MADE TO REQUIRE REFORMATION OF CONTRACT .

1, The issue raised by Appellants is not relevant. The issue raised by Appellants is an affirmative defense that could be raised by Respondents Marsing and Appellants complain that Marsings have not done so. They need not do so inasmuch as Appellants have alleged fraud and mistake and have

thus given Respondents the opportunity of raising the three year statute of limitations provided for in 78-12-26(3) .

Appellants cited in support of their argument Hurwitz v. David B. Richards and Company, 436 P2d 794 (20 U. 2d 232) , which provides for the remedies of a vendee based on an anticipatory breach. They are:

"1. Treat the entire contract as broken and sue for damages.'

'2. Treat the contract as still binding and wait until the time arises for its performance and at such time bring an action on the contract.'

'3. Rescind the contract and sue for the money paid or for the value of services or property furnished."

Appellants are not seeking damages from Marsing. They have not waited until the conclusion of the contract to sue on the contract, nor are they seeking the return of their money. They seek reformation of the contract and cancellation of the warranty deed to the disputed acre from Marsing to Dennis and from Dennis to McBride. Because their actions are based on fraud or mistake the three year statute of limitation is governing. The reason for the three year statute of limitation contained in 78-12-26(3) is discussed in Daidsen v. Salt Lake City, 81 P2d 374, 95 Utah 347, where it is stated on page 376 as follows:

"This is for the very cogent reason that a person claiming to have been defrauded or to have been induced to enter into a contract by mistake should not be permitted to allow a great length of time to lapse after discovery of the fraud or mistake before instituting his suit. Otherwise, false claims of fraud or mistake might be asserted after the opposing party is unable to meet the issue because of death or absence of witnesses or destruction of vouchers and proofs."

" \* \* \* He may in one action, it is true, ask for cancellation of the deed and to have his title quieted and recover possession of the real estate. But if his relief in each case depends as here upon the cancellation of a deed for fraud or mistake he must bring his action within the period provided by law for an action based upon that ground. It would be extremely mischievous if a person claiming to be a victim of fraud or mistake were permitted to delay bringing his action until nearly seven years after the discovery of the fraud or mistake upon which he relies." (Emphasis added)

In Doxey-Layton Company v. Clark, 548 P2d 902 (1976), the court held that the three year statute of limitations did not begin to run as of the date of the contract but as of the date when the deed was recorded, which was the time when the grantor should have discovered the mistake.

The latest case from the Utah Supreme Court to speak on the issue of the applicability of 78-12-26(3), Utah Code Annotated, 1953, as amended, is Haslem v. Ottosen, 639 P2d 27. This is a case to reform a warranty deed to exclude "after acquired" mineral rights because it was alleged it was the intention that no such rights be conveyed inasmuch as at the time of the conveyance the grantor had no such rights and the grantee knew such to be the fact. The court state:

"Both parties agree that Plaintiffs action is based on mutual mistake. The applicable statute of limitation, which was the basis of the trial court rulings is U.C.A. 1953, Section 78-12-26 (3), Davidson v. Salt Lake City, 95 Utah 347, 81 P2d 374(1938), it provides: 'Within three years' \* \* \* (3) An action for relief on the ground of fraud or mistake; but the cause of action in such case shall not be deemed to have accrued until the discovery by the aggrieved party of the facts constituting the fraud or mistake \* \* \*.'

' In Gibson v. Jensen, 48 Utah 244, 158 P 426 (1916), this court construed the predecessor to Section 78-12-26(3) and held that discovery occurs when facts arise which would put a reasonable prudent person on notice to inquire into the matter. Additionally, if no inquiry is made one is held to have discovered all that would have been revealed if reasonable inquiry had been made. \* \* \* Both cases held that the

statute of limitations did not being to run until the mistake was discovered or in the exercise of reasonable diligence, could have been discovered."

The above case clearly and unequivocally stands for the proposition that the three year statute of limitations commences running at such time as the aggrieved party learns of the fraud or mistake or should have.

The Haslem case cites Davidson v. Salt Lake City, 95 Utah 347, 81 P2d 374, which was a case seeking to reform a deed based upon the obtaining of the same by fraud. The court, thereon, at page 378, held that the three year statute of limitations applied and quoted extensively from Weight v. Bailey, 45 Utah 584, 147 P2d 899 (1915), as follows:

"Plaintiff brought a suit to reform a written contract and recover judgment according to its terms when reformed (Emphasis added). The three year statute of limitations relating to actions for relief on the ground of fraud or mistake pleaded in defense and the trial court held the suit to be barred by such statute. Upon appeal the Plaintiff urged that the statute did not apply and that an action to reform a written instrument might be brought at any time while an action upon the instrument could be brought to enforce it. (Emphasis added.) It was also urged that 'mere lapse of time does not bar any case of purely equitable jurisdiction.'

' This court held that the three year statute applied, the court saying (Page 901); '

'If the contract did not address the agreement made by the Respondent and himself (Appellant) he then had full notice of that fact and, hence, was required to bring the action to reform the contract so as to make it evidence the agreement as made. Such an action he was required to bring within three years from the time he learned of all the facts constituting the fraud or mistake pleaded by him. \* \* \* We are clearly of the opinion that both upon principal and authority under a statute like ours the right of action was barred." (Emphasis added)

## POINT TWO

WHETHER A SUBSEQUENT PURCHASER OF REAL PROPERTY CHARGED WITH INFORMATION, KNOWLEDGE AND CLAIMS OF A PURPORTED PRIOR PURCHASER OF REAL PROPERTY BY REASON OF RECORDING OF A NOTICE OF CONTRACT INTEREST, AND AFTER PERSONAL KNOWLEDGE OF CLAIM TO REAL PROPERTY, CAN BE PLACED IN TITLE BECAUSE OF THE RUNNING OF THE STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS (THREE YEARS FROM MISTAKE) PRIOR TO AN ACTION BEING BROUGHT TO CORRECT AN ERROR IN THE CONTRACT AND DEED.

In February, 1979, when Appellant Beckstead sold her interest in the contract with Marsing to Appellants Bertrand and Fontaine, Appellants Bertrand and Fontaine recorded the document entitled "Notice of Contract" in the office of the Weber County Recorder which stated that the said Appellants claimed an interest in and to the real property described in said notice, which property showed a beginning point of 609 feet North of the true point of beginning, which description would include the disputed acre.

The only effect of the recording of said notice is to appraise subsequent purchasers of the claim of Bertrand and Fontaines', no matter how faulty, but did not establish the ownership of Bertrand and Fontaines' to the property described in said notice. Such a notice is merely a warning to subsequent purchasers that they buy the disputed property at their risk. Generally, it remains for future litigation to determine the priority of rights between the parties. The trial court has already determined that any rights that the Appellants, Bertrand and Fonatine, have to the disputed acre have been barred by the three year statute of limitation, 78-12-26(3).

### POINT THREE

WHETHER STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS FOR FRAUD AND MISTAKE IS TOLLED WHERE PARTY AGAINST WHOM THE STATUTE RUNS IS IN POSSESSION OR CONSTRUCTIVE POSSESSION OF THE PREMISES.

In as much as this matter was presented to the court on Motions for Summary Judgment no parties nor witnesses were sworn and testified in open court and there was before the court only the pleadings of the parties, the affidavit of Appellant, Gay Beckstead, the affidavit of Donald Ray Dennis, and the deposition of Gay Beckstead. There are no pleadings of appellants alleging that any of the Appellants were in actual or constructive possession of the premises. However, the court has before it the affidavit of Respondents Dennis that he had enclosed the disputed area with a fence and that he was in the sole possession of the disputed acre and occupied it to the exclusion of all other parties (R 121, 122).

The case of Jensen v. Manila Corporation of the Church of Jesus Christ of Latter Day Saints, 565 P2d 63, cited by Appellants is not authority for Appellants' position. It is incorrect to allege "Statute of Limitations for fraud and mistake does not apply where one against whom the statute is to be asserted is in possession." The Statute of Limitations for Fraud and Mistake (78-12-26 (3)) was not raised as a defense in that case, nor was it discussed on appeal. Laches was raised by the defendant on page 65, but not the three year statute of limitations. Laches and the three year statute of limitations are two different doctrines as "Laches", according to Blacks Law Dictionary is defined as "Omission to assert a right for an unreasonable



and unexplained length of time under circumstances prejudicial to the adverse party." The statute relied upon requires action by the aggrieved party within the limits of three years after discovery or should have discovered the fraud or mistake (Haslem v. Ottosen, 639 P2d 27, Davidson v. Salt Lake City, 95 Utah 347, 81 P2d 374) .

The court in the Jensen case, supra, quoting from Tapler v. Fray, 194 PSupp 239, 132 A2d 890, as follows:

"Plaintiffs were in undisturbed possession of the premises and there was no occasion to bring the action earlier. Laches will not be imputed to one constantly in complete possession of Premises, the title to which is in controversy." (Emphasis added)

Thus, it can easily be seen that the court in the Jensen case, supra, was speaking only of laches and not the three year statute of limitations 78-12-26 (3), and its holding was based on "undisturbed", "constant" and complete possession.

In the case before the court, the record is completely void of any allegations or evidence that Appellants were in possession of any portion of the disputed acre for any period of time. The only evidence is that Respondent Dennis was in sole and exclusive possession of the disputed acre. (R 121, 122) .

#### POINT FOUR

WHETHER THE STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS RUNS AGAINST A PARTY IN AN ACTION WHO FILES AN ACTION AFTER DISCOVERY OF A MISTAKE BUT DOES NOT ALLEGE FRAUD OR MISTAKE.

In support of the Appellants position they cite Haws v. Jensen, (Utah) 209 P2d 229. This case did not involve fraud or mistake nor were

there any allegations as to either . This was an action to enforce an oral trust agreement upon real property . The three year statute of limitation was held not to apply because the facts upon which it could be applied simply were not raised by the parties nor considered by the trial court, but the defense was raised for the first time on appeal .

The fact of the matter is that in the case before the court , in paragraphs four and five of the complaint, the Plaintiffs allege both fraud and mistake (R 2, 3) , although a finding of either fraud or mistake would be sufficient to support the decision of the trial court .

The following from paragraphs 4 and 5 of said complaint is significant .

"That during the negotiations for the sale of said property , said defendants , Marsing , represented to said plaintiff's , Beckstead , that there were ten acres of land in said property . That during said negotiations Defendants , Marsings , represented to Plaintiff Beckstead , that the location of the southern boundry of said parcel was a fence , which fence was approximately 609 feet North from the center of a county road . That in fact the description for said contract was changed so as to include only nine acres rather than the ten acres sold by the defendant . \* \* \* Because of an error in the description , 913 was inserted on the seventh line of the description in the place of 609 . In order to make the deed describe the subject property and to make it conform to the actual intention of the parties number 609 should be inserted in the seventh line in place of 913.6 ."

'5. During the spring of 1979 , Plaintiffs s discovered the error in the contract and deed ." (Emphasis added)